THE LONDON BOROUGH OF CAMDEN

At a hearing of **LICENSING PANEL D** held on **THURSDAY**, **8TH AUGUST**, **2024** at 7.00 pm in Remote meeting via Microsoft Teams.

MEMBERS OF THE PANEL PRESENT

Councillors Eddie Hanson (Chair) and Sabrina Francis

MEMBERS OF THE PANEL ABSENT

Councillor Matt Cooper

The minutes should be read in conjunction with the agenda for the hearing. They are subject to approval and signature at the next hearing of Licensing Panel D and any corrections approved at that hearing will be recorded in those minutes.

MINUTES

1. GUIDANCE ON REMOTE MEETINGS HELD UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 AND ASSOCIATED REGULATIONS

RESOLVED –

THAT the guidance on remote meetings be noted.

2. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Matt Cooper. It was noted that the meeting was quorate with two Members present.

3. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF STATUTORY DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS, COMPULSORY REGISTERABLE NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND VOLUNTARY REGISTERABLE NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS IN MATTERS ON THIS AGENDA

There were no declarations of interest.

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Webcasting

The Chair announced that the meeting was being broadcast live to the internet and would be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be made available to those that requested them. Those participating in the meeting were deemed to be consenting to being filmed.

5. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DECIDES TO TAKE AS URGENT

There were no notifications of items of urgent business.

6. MINUTES

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 30th May 2024.

RESOLVED –

THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 30th May 2024 be approved and signed as a correct record.

7. ELECTRIC BALLROOM, 184 CAMDEN HIGH STREET, LONDON NW1 8QP

This item was withdrawn, as the matter had been resolved.

8. HOXTON HOTEL, 203 HIGH HOLBORN, LONDON WC1V 7BD

Consideration was given to a report of the Executive Director, Supporting Communities detailing an application to vary a premises licensing under Section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003.

The Licensing Officer introduced the report and explained that the application was to extend the terminal hour for licensable activities in the basement of the premises to 2am from Mondays to Saturdays. The premises was located in the Seven Dials Cumulative Impact Special Policy Area.

Members noted that there was a written submission from an Interested Party who was not present. They noted the written submission.

Jack Speigler, the Applicant's Representative, made the following points in his submission:

- The premises was a 220-bed hotel. Their primary interest was in providing a quiet and restful environment for their guests and so they did not intend to operate the basement in a way that would cause noise or other nuisance.
- The premises had been in operation since 2014 and was part of an international hospitality group.
- The aim of the application was to align the hours of operation of the ground floor and basement.
- No objections had been received from Responsible Authorities or residents' associations.

Licensing Panel D - Thursday, 8th August, 2024

- They had been in discussion with the Covent Garden Community Association. They had also attempted to contact the Interested Party but she had not responded.
- The premises was offering a condition which would state that there could not be a dance floor in the basement and which would state that, with the exception of the designated bar area, service of alcohol would be by waiter/waitress service.

A member asked about the capacity of the ground floor and basement. The manager of the hotel, Murray Scott, said that the capacity on the ground floor was 200 people in three sections. The seated capacity in the basement was about 65-70 people, but could contain up to 120 people if they were standing.

Mr Scott was asked if any additional security would be required for the premises. He said that they had two SIA registered door supervisors on duty and also a floor manager who would supervise the space and help co-ordinate matters such as the departure of patrons.

Members asked why the variation was being applied for now. Mr Scott said the basement had previously been let to Soho House but that this lease had ended and they were now taking a new approach to the basement.

Mr Spiegler and Mr Scott assured Members that the intention was not to run the premises as a nightclub and so it would not cause the public nuisance or cumulative impact in the area that such a premises might.

Members noted the noise concerns raised by the Interested Party. The Applicant said that one noise incident had been from a live band on the ground floor, and so did not relate to the area the variation covered, and the other related to an old glass-crushing machine which had been generating too much noise and which was being serviced.

The representatives of the premises were asked if they adhered to the 'Ask for Angela' policy on women's safety and they said that they did.

Panel Decision and Reasons

Having heard from the Applicant and considered the written evidence from the Interested Party, Members deliberated on the application. They said that they were reassured by the application and the responses from the applicant that the premises was well-run. They were of the view that granting the application subject to the offered condition would not add to cumulative impact in the area.

They noted that there had been no objections from Responsible Authorities or from the residents' associations in the area.

Licensing Panel D - Thursday, 8th August, 2024

Members agreed that the premises had rebutted the presumption to refuse variation applications in a cumulative impact area and that the requested variation should be granted, subject to the existing conditions on the licence and the additional condition offered.

RESOLVED -

(i) THAT the hours of operation of the basement be extended to:

a) Supply of Alcohol (On Sales)

07:00 - 02:00 (Basement) - Monday to Saturday

The premises shall remain open to permit the sale of alcohol to hotel residents and their bona fide guests 24 hours per day

b) Late Night Refreshment:

23:00 - 02:00 (Basement) Monday to Saturday

c) Recorded Music

07:00 - 02:00 (Basement) - Monday to Saturday

d) Live Music

07:00 - 02:00 (Basement) - Monday to Saturday

e) Films

07:00 - 02:00 (Basement) - Monday to Saturday

(ii) THAT the following condition be added to the licence:

"In the basement:

a. There shall be no dance floor.

b. Except for the designated bar area hatched on the licence plan, the supply of alcohol shall be way by waiter/waitress service to seated customers only."

ACTION: Executive Director, Supporting Communities

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT

Licensing Panel D - Thursday, 8th August, 2024

There was no other business.

The hearing ended at 7.45 pm.

CHAIR

Contact Officer:	Vinothan Sangarapillai
Telephone No:	020 7974 4071
E-Mail:	licensing.committee@camden.gov.uk

MINUTES END